
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
March 7, 2013, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 7, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 







 2


D.   Approval of Resolution 13-06 Approving Amendment No.1 to the Agreement for 
Legal Services with Meyers Nave. 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Agreement with Monte Rio Rec and Park District, Monte Rio 


Chamber of Commerce and Torr family to waive capacity and flat charges for 
“The Triangle” property in Monte Rio (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re proposal to refund District Bonds (Est. Time 15 min) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Proposed Cell Tower at Highland Treatment Facility 
 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville    (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-07, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Accept Capital Improvement Project 2013 and to Sign and Record a Notice of 
Completion (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 


A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 
 Title: General Manager 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
February 7, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Richard Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Mary Baker 
      Dave Hardy 
      Michelle McDonald 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:29 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 


p.m.) 
 
(None.)   
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:30 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski moved to approve the Minutes of the January 8, 2013 Board Meeting.  Director 
Wikle amended the motion to approve the entire Consent Calendar.  Director Lipinski approved the 
motion as amended.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following items were 
approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 8, 2013 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:31 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:31 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Agreement with Monte Rio Rec and Park District, 


Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce and Torr family to waive capacity and flat 
charges for “The Triangle” property in Monte Rio.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board questions ensued.  Discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by 
Mary Baker.  Legal Counsel David Warner provided comments.  Public Comment was 
made by Michelle McDonald.  Board discussion and questions ensued.  Public comment 
was made by David Hardy.  Public comment was made by Mary Baker.  Further Board 
discussion ensued.  The GM provided additional comments.  Further Board discussion 
ensued.  Public comment was made by Michelle McDonald.  Board discussion ensued.  
No formal action was taken.  


 
B. (7:13 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 2nd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.   


 
C. (7:28 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2013-14 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget Process issues.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion 
ensued.  A Budget Committee Meeting was scheduled for February 14 at 10 a.m. 


 
D. (8:07 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Rio Vista saddle failures.   
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  No action was 


taken.  


E. (8:08 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Proposed Cell Tower at Highland Treatment 
Facility.  Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


 
F. (8:14 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-05 re Authorizing and Revoking 


Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 


13-05, Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West America Bank Accounts.  Director 
Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:16 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. 2013 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:21 p.m.) 


 


 2







 3


Director Robb-Wilder commented re Ethics webinar. 
 
** At 8:23 pm, the Board meeting adjourned for a brief recess, reconvening at 8:30 p.m.  
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.) 
 
At 8:30 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  The 
Board went into Closed Session at 8:32 p.m.  At 8:50 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced:  
 
 A. Conference with Real Party Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.8 
  Property at 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville, CA 
  Agency Negotiator: General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: AT&T 
  Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
  No action was taken (pulled from the Agenda). 
 
 B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation 


pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 54956.9.  Number of cases: 1 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator 
  District Negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating Parties: SSWD and Meyers Nave et al. 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:51 p.m.) 
 
1. Budget 
2. Triangle 
3. Goals and objectives 
4. AT&T lease 
6. Berry litigation  
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:52 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:30 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:31 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:16 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:21 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:51 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 7, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 13-06 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT WITH MEYERS NAVE 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution No. 1 to the agreement for legal 
services with Meyers Nave which changes the fee schedule for Meyers Nave 
services.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Will increase the hourly rate for general counsel services by 
$20 per hour and includes other increases for other, lesser used services.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District entered into its agreement for legal services with Meyers Nave in 2006.  Since 
that time there has been no change in the fee schedule for legal services.  In the summer of 
2012 Meyers Nave requested that the District consider changing the fee schedule.  After 
moving through the transition to a new general counsel (David Warner), the District has 
agreed to the new fee schedule which is included as Attachment 1 to Resolution 13-06.   
 
   







Resolution No. 13-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER  DISTRICT APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 
LEGAL SERVICES DATED OCTOBER 1, 2006, BETWEEN THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AND MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON, 
AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID AMENDMENT 


 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") entered into an 


Agreement in 2006 ("Original Agreement") with Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson 
("Meyers Nave") to provide legal services for the District; and 


 
WHEREAS, there has been no change to the Meyers Nave fee structure since that time; 


and 
 


WHEREAS, Meyers Nave has requested that the District approve the fee schedule 
attached as Attachment 1 to the proposed Amendment No.1; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to amend the Original Agreement with 


Meyers Nave in the manner described herein and as further described in Exhibit A attached. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 


1. Amendment No.1 to the Original Agreement is approved (Exhibit A). 
 
2. All other terms of the Original Agreement, except as otherwise set forth in 


Amendment No.1.  
 


3. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute Amendment 
No.1 on behalf of the District. 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 7, 2013, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           







Resolution 13-06 2 
March 7, 2013 


      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 13-06 3 
March 7, 2013 


 
 


EXHIBIT A:  
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES  
DATED OCTOBER 1, 2006, BETWEEN THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT AND MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON 
 


 
This first amendment to the agreement for legal services dated October 1, 2006 
between the Sweetwater Springs Water District and Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & 
Wilson, is hereby entered into and dated April 1, 2013. 
 
1.  Attachment 1 to the agreement for legal services between the 


Sweetwater Springs Water District and Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & 
Wilson, dated October 1, 2006, is hereby amended by deleting the 
existing Attachment 1 entitled “Fee Schedule” in its entirety and replacing 
it with the Attachment 1 attached to this first amendment. 


 
2.  Except as modified above, all terms and conditions of the 


agreement for legal services dated October 1, 2006 between the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District and Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & 
Wilson shall remain in full force and effect. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this amendment to be effective 
April 1, 2013, as follows: 
 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District  Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson 
 
 
 
_____________________________   _______________________________ 
By: Richard Holmer, Board President  By: Eric Danly, Principal 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Julie Kenny, Board Secretary 
 







Resolution 13-06 4 
March 7, 2013 


 
ATTACHMENT 1  


Fee Schedule 


(Rates become effective on April 1, 2013)   


        
Service Hourly Rate___________________________  


 
General Counsel Services $220 
 
Specialized Legal Services $240 
(litigation, CEQA matters, eminent  
domain, labor/employment) 
 
Paralegal/Legal Assistant $115 
 
Travel Time $110 
 
**************************************************************************************************** 
 
 
 
 





		Item III-D - Approval of Res 13-06, Meyers Nave Amdmt 1

		Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 



		Item III-D.1 Resolution 13-06 -Amendment No. 1 to Meyers Nave Agmt






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 
  
SUBJECT:   DISCUSSION/ACTION RE AGREEMENT WITH MONTE RIO REC AND PARK 
DISTRICT, MONTE RIO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE AND TORR FAMILY TO WAIVE CAPACITY 
AND FLAT CHARGES FOR “THE TRIANGLE” PROPERTY IN MONTE RIO 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Consider a proposal from the Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce (Chamber) and 
the Monte Rio Recreation and Park District (MRRPD) to waive capacity charges 
and the annual assessment for a parcel in downtown Monte Rio known as the 
Triangle to facilitate the Chamber and MRRPD providing and maintaining 
landscaping at the site.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


District would collect water use and base rate charges but would not collect the 
capacity charge (currently $4672.80) nor the annual assessment ($198).  


 
DISCUSSION: 
  
Members of the Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce and the Torr family presented a 
proposal to the Board at the February meeting to waive capacity charges at the Monte 
Rio Triangle (Hwy 116 and Bohemian Hwy in downtown Monte Rio) so that the Chamber 
and the Monte Rio Park and Recreation District could improve the landscaping at that 
site.  There was considerable discussion on this topic at the meeting.  The Board 
requested that the proponents work out more details for this proposal and come back to 
the March meeting for further discussion.  The Board appointed Tim Lipinski as the 
Board liaison for possible meetings prior to the March Board meeting.  Such a meeting 
did take place on February 20th and the proponents agreed to develop a proposal for 
inclusion into the Board packet.   As of the writing of this report that proposal has not 
been received by District staff.  When it arrives we will send it to Board members 
electronically.     
 
Information from the February Agenda Report: 
 
According to District Policy 3020.142 “no person or entity will make any new connection 
to the District's water system without first paying the capacity charge established 
herein, unless the District otherwise waives or defers this requirement pursuant to a 







Request to Waive Capacity Charge for Triangle 2 
March 7, 2013 


written agreement between the District and the applicant, approved by the District 
Board of Directors.”    
 
The District does not charge the capacity charge to public agencies nor does it collect 
the annual assessment (Flat Charge) from public agencies.  This particular arrangement 
for the Triangle has been under discussion for many years.  I believe this is the first 
formal request to the District.  While the parcel would still be in private hands, the 
improvements to the Triangle would enhance the downtown Monte Rio area and would 
be a public service to the Monte Rio area.   
 
The cost of physically connecting water service to the site should be minimal.  Plumbing 
exists to the meter location; all that is needed is dropping in a meter and turning it on.  
The Chamber would pay for the cost providing service – Base Rate, Water Usage Rate 
and Capital Debt Reduction charges.   
 





		District would collect water use and base rate charges but would not collect the capacity charge (currently $4672.80) nor the annual assessment ($198). 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 7, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2013-2014 
Budget, including the District’s long term budget issues, and provide direction to 
staff and the ad hoc Budget Committee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Budget Committee has had three meetings to discuss the draft 2013-2014 
Budget which is being presented at this meeting (the line item draft Budget is 
attached as Exhibit A).  Among the issues we have discussed (and shared in part 
with the Board at the February meeting): 
 
Long-Term Budget Issues.  The District’s long-term budget issues include: 
 


• The starting point for estimating water sales revenue.  Last year we 
estimated water sales revenue based on a 3% Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges increase with 4% decline in water sales which had been the long-
term trend.  In fact, water sales have increased by 9% in the first half of 
the year (see Figure 1 enhanced from last year’s report) which has 
resulted in estimated 6% increase in revenue.  Two questions: what 
should be the starting point for next year’s estimate and what level of 
sales should we expect for next year?  We are using the projected end of 
year water sales revenue and flat water sales as the answers to those 
questions.   


 
In our Budget Committee meetings we discussed the value of separating 
Water Usage Charges revenues – based on sales – and Base Rate Charges 
which are fixed in the effort to estimate projected revenues, and the 
simplicity of combining the Base Rate Charge with the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge because they are treated exactly the same with respect 
to how they are calculated for the customer – fixed amount based on 
customer class, meter size and/or multiple units.  The Draft Budget shows 
these revenue sources in this manner.   
 


• 3% increase for all charges on water bill – Water Use, Base Rate and 
Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  The Districts plan for annual 3% 
increases to develop revenues for a sustainable capital improvement 







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   2 
March 7, 2013 
 


 


program is continued for this coming fiscal year.  The District’s inadequate 
infrastructure is expressed in the periodic “horror stories” sections of 
water lines we show from time to time, and the District’s high water loss 
rate – approximately 26% this year.   The demise of redevelopment 
means the District’s aggressive Capital Improvement Program aimed at 
reducing system leakage and at other system improvements will be 
slowed down, but the effort shouldn’t be totally stopped.     


 
The improved water sales of this year gives the District a better starting 
point in the long-term analyses shown in Tables 3-?   The many 
uncertainties facing us mean the development of the sustainable funding 
needs to be examined on an annual basis – we look like we are in better 
shape this year than last year.  Maybe that will continue.       
 
Figure 1 and Tables 1-5 have a lot of information in them and will be 
discussed in more detail in the meeting presentation.    
 


• Budget Uncertainties.  Major uncertainties for this budget and long-
term budget planning have to do with other items on this agenda – will 
refunding some of our long-term debt happen and to what extent will that 
reduce our debt expenditures for FY2014 and beyond?  Will we reach 
agreement with AT&T for a cell tower lease?  Those two items may help us 
in the $80,000 range annually.   The Draft Budget includes 6 months of 
cell tower lease revenue and no refunding.   


 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 (FY14) Budget 
 
Coming back to the present, the draft FY14 Budget detail is attached as Exhibit 
A.  Figures 2 and 3 show the relative total revenues and expenses projected for 
the Operating and Capital Budget.  This is the first year since 2008 that no 
revenue will be received from Redevelopment and it shows in the reserves used 
to balance the budget. The draft Budget has been discussed by the Ad Hoc 
Budget Committee in two meetings in January and February.  Staff have met 
many times to develop the appropriate line item amounts for the Operating 
section of the Budget.    The format used this year is identical to the format used 
in last year’s budget. Assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the 
Budget include: 
 


• Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be 
raised 3%.    


• Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales, thus the end of year 
FY 2013 water usage revenues are estimated to increase by 3%.   


• The revenue from the  Base Rate Charge and the CDRC have been based 
on a 3% increase in the projected end of year amounts for those two 







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   3 
March 7, 2013 
 


 


sources of revenue.  These revenues are fixed charges and do not vary 
with water sales.    


• Salaries are increased to match the Union Memorandum of Understanding 
and contracts for nonrepresented employees.  


• Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and 
have increased $35,000 over FY2013 Budgeted but approximately $4,000 
less than end of year projected for FY2013.      


• Expenditures for Tanks and Facilities include liners for the Summit and 
Park Avenue Tanks and the foundation for the Park Avenue Tank; these 
total $19,000.     


• The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $390,000 
which is a reflection of the expected higher starting point for this coming 
fiscal year and expected flat sales.  
 


With the Capital section of the Budget, comparisons between FY12 and FY11 are 
less meaningful because completely different capital projects are undertaken 
from year to year.  The major expense of the FY13 Budget is the FY 2013 CIP.  
We have included funding from the Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency 
(RDA), supported by the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee 
(RRROC) although that funding will be under the scrutiny of the Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee and the State of California.  The 2013 CIP is on schedule 
for award of the construction contract at the May meeting and most costs 
associated with that project will be expended in FY 2013.    
 
The FY 2015 CIP is also included in this budget because funds for this project will 
likely be obligated in May or June 2014, during the FY 2014 budget year.  The 
expense of  construction of the FY 2015 CIP is not included in Figure 2 because 
only a small fraction of the FY 2015 CIP expenses will be expended in FY 14 
(design costs).      
 
District Reserves 
 
The FY14 Budget includes the District Reserve Policy approved in September 
2009.   
 


• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget 
expenses for emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 


• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 
downturn or other economic crisis. 


• Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of the annual debt payments to ensure 
funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for 
similar issues with the capital program. 
 







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   4 
March 7, 2013 
 


 


The draft Budget shows a Policy Reserve of $1,132,099 and $1,926,042 in 
Reserves Above Policy at the end of the fiscal year.  This is a substantial 
decrease from the prior year, but it must be remembered that Capital Expenses 
include the FY 2014 CIP cost of $1,592,000.     
 
Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Proposition 218 requires that 45 day notice be given to all property owners in 
the area affected by a proposed rate increase.  Notice for proposed water rate 
increases will need to be mailed to all property owners by March 18, 2013.  The 
Notice will provide for an increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
and Capital Debt Reduction Charge of up to 3% for FY 2014 and will include the 
proposed rate schedules and a protest form.      


 
  


Table 1.  FY 2013-2014 Budget Preparation  
Review Capital Improvement Program  December 7, 2012 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2013 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 7, 2013 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase, if 
necessary 


March 18, 2013 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 4, 2013 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates, if 


necessary 


May 2, 2013 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   5 
March 7, 2013 
 


 


Figure 1.  Effective Water Rates Based on Changing Water Sales


-3.0%


-2.5%


-2.0%


-1.5%


-1.0%


-0.5%


0.0%


0.5%


1.0%


1.5%


2.0%


2.5%


3.0%


3.5%


4.0%


4.5%


5.0%


5.5%


6.0%


6.5%


7.0%


7% 6% 5% 4% 3% 2% 1% 0% -1% -2% -3% -4% -5% -6% -7% -8% -9%


% Decline in Water Sales


Ef
fe


ct
iv


e 
W


at
er


 R
at


e 
In


cr
ea


se


2% Approved
3% Approved


4% Approved
No Increase


Flat Use
2012







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   6 
March 7, 2013 
 


Figure 2.  FY 2014 Sources of Funds
Total = $3.1 Million Revenues + $690,000 Reserves


Base Rate
35%


Water Usage 
18%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
20%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
2%


Reserves
18%


 
 
 


Figure 3. FY 2014 Expenses
Total = $3.8 Million


(does not include FY15 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
28%


Salary and Benefits
30%


Debt Repayment
28%


Services and Supplies
14%


 







Water Rate Increase = 3% Sales Flat, CDRC has 3% annual increase


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE


3 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction 238,000 245,140 252,494 260,069 267,871 275,907 284,184 292,710 301,491 234,300        


5 4031.1. · Water Sales 1,948,000 2,006,440 2,066,633 2,128,632 2,192,491 2,258,266 2,326,014 2,395,794 2,467,668 2,541,698


4 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 110,500 108,810 109,628 110,454 111,289 112,132 112,983 113,843 114,711 115,589


5 Total Income 2,296,500 2,360,390 2,428,756 2,499,156 2,571,651 2,646,305 2,723,181 2,802,347 2,883,871 2,891,587


6 EXPENSES
7 OPERATING EXPENSES


8 SALARY & BENEFITS


11 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,095,000 1,082,877 1,092,558 1,116,915 1,201,095 1,228,279 1,256,231 1,284,992 1,314,573 1,345,016


12 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


13 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 524,670 529,571 534,520 539,520 544,569 550,533 556,571 562,682 568,868 575,129


14 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,619,670 1,612,448 1,627,079 1,656,434 1,745,664 1,778,813 1,812,802 1,847,674 1,883,441 1,920,145


15 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $676,830 $747,942 $801,677 $842,721 $825,987 $867,492 $910,379 $954,673 $1,000,430 $971,442


16 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 20,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000


17 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


18 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Reven


12-13 (FY13)
BUDGET* FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22


u 238,000 245,140 252,494       260,069      267,871      275,907      284,184          292,710         301,491         234,300        


19 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 360,000 440,000         470,000       520,000      480,000      530,000      550,000          600,000         620,000         680,000        


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,000 725,140 762,494 820,069 787,871 845,907 874,184 932,710 961,491 954,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 18,830 17,802 13,183 17,652 12,116 16,585 10,195 16,963 12,939 12,142


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 378,830 457,802 483,183 537,652 492,116 546,585 560,195 616,963 632,939 692,142
25 Total Assessments 777,000 777,001 777,002 777,003 777,004 777,005 777,006 777,007 777,008 777,009
26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 238,000       245,140       252,494     260,069    267,871    275,907    284,184        292,710       301,491       234,300      
27 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000      10,000          10,000         10,000         10,000        
28 CDC Grants 914,250       
29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 300,000         610,000         560,000       450,000      410,000      320,000          450,000         260,000        


30 TOTAL REVENUE 2,633,080 2,119,943 2,082,679 2,034,724 1,956,991 1,609,497 1,951,385 2,146,680 1,721,438 1,973,451


31
32 Total Debt Payments 1,091,314      1,091,314      1,091,314    1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314       1,091,314       1,070,314      921,314        


33 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022
34 Annual CIP 1,490,000 974,000 936,000 890,000 814,000 805,000 1,000,000       1,000,000     


35 In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,621,314 2,105,314 2,067,314 2,021,314 1,945,314 1,131,314 1,936,314 2,131,314 1,110,314 1,961,314


37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 11,766 14,629 15,365 13,410 11,677 478,183 15,071 15,366 611,124 12,137


38 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


39 Ending Funds ab District Policy 3,122,101    2,526,730    1,982,095  1,545,505   1,147,183   1,625,366   1,320,437       885,803         1,496,927      1,249,064     


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY
** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus
*** =Transfers from CDRC


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Approved CIP


EXPENSES


 







 


FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   8 
March 7, 2013 
 


 


Water Rate Increase = 3% Sales Flat, CDRC has 3% annual increase, Added CIP
12-13 (FY13)


BUDGET* FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE


3 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,186,000 2,251,580 2,319,127 2,388,701 2,460,362 2,534,173 2,610,198 2,688,504 2,769,159 2,775,998


4 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 110,500 108,810 109,628 110,454 111,289 112,132 112,983 113,843 114,711 115,589


5 Total Income 2,296,500 2,360,390 2,428,756 2,499,156 2,571,651 2,646,305 2,723,181 2,802,347 2,883,871 2,891,587


6 EXPENSES
7 OPERATING EXPENSES


8 SALARY & BENEFITS


9 804,000 777,286 791,953 806,830 872,230 888,940 905,980 923,370 941,100 959,190


10 291,000 305,592 300,606 310,085 328,865 339,339 350,251 361,622 373,473 385,826


11 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,095,000 1,082,877 1,092,558 1,116,915 1,201,095 1,228,279 1,256,231 1,284,992 1,314,573 1,345,016
12 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


13 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 524,670 529,571 534,520 539,520 544,569 550,533 556,571 562,682 568,868 575,129


14 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,619,670 1,612,448 1,627,079 1,656,434 1,745,664 1,778,813 1,812,802 1,847,674 1,883,441 1,920,145


15 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $676,830 $747,942 $801,677 $842,721 $825,987 $867,492 $910,379 $954,673 $1,000,430 $971,442


16 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 20,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000 26,000 5,000


17 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


18 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenu 238,000 245,140 252,494       260,069      267,871      275,907      284,184          292,710         301,491         234,300        


19 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 360,000 440,000         470,000       520,000      480,000      530,000      550,000          600,000         620,000         680,000        


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 638,000 725,140 762,494 820,069 787,871 845,907 874,184 932,710 961,491 954,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 18,830 17,802 13,183 17,652 12,116 16,585 10,195 16,963 12,939 12,142


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 378,830 457,802 483,183 537,652 492,116 546,585 560,195 616,963 632,939 692,142
25 Total Assessments 777,000 777,001 777,002 777,003 777,004 777,005 777,006 777,007 777,008 777,009
26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 238,000       245,140       252,494     260,069    267,871    275,907    284,184        292,710       301,491       234,300      
27 Capital Interest 25,000         30,000         10,000       10,000      10,000      10,000      10,000          10,000         10,000         10,000        
28 CDC Grants 914,250       
29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 300,000         610,000         560,000       450,000      410,000      350000 320,000          250,000         200,000         260,000        


30 TOTAL REVENUE 2,633,080 2,119,943 2,082,679 2,034,724 1,956,991 1,959,497 1,951,385 1,946,680 1,921,438 1,973,451


31
32 Total Debt Payments 1,091,314      1,091,314      1,091,314    1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314   1,091,314       1,091,314       1,070,314      921,314        


33 CIP 2013 CIP 2014 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022
34 Annual CIP 1,490,000 974,000 936,000 890,000 814,000 800,000      805,000 800,000         800,000         800,000        


35 In-House Construction Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
36 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,621,314 2,105,314 2,067,314 2,021,314 1,945,314 1,931,314 1,936,314 1,931,314 1,910,314 1,761,314


37 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 11,766 14,629 15,365 13,410 11,677 28,183 15,071 15,366 11,124 212,137


38 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
39 Ending Funds ab District Policy 3,122,101    2,526,730    1,982,095  1,545,505   1,147,183   825,366      520,437          285,803         96,927           49,064          


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY
** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus
*** =Transfers from CDRC


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Increased CIP


Total Salary







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


1


OPERATING BUDGET
OPERATING BUDGET  


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +
REVENUE


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Bill Revenue


236,887 230,000  238,600  245,800          15,800         3% rate on projected Based on FY11 actual


1,279,036 1,248,930 1,293,290       1,332,100       83,170         separating out Base Rate Charge Revenue for 
future combination with CDRC


1,515,923 1,478,930 1,531,890 1,577,900 98,970         
Future budgets may be seeing just this?  Fixed 
element of water rate revenue. This is not 
double counted in Total Operating Revenue


0.70             560,823 547,620 655,470 675,100          127,480       


Based on 3% rate increase on projected 2012 
sales; projected based on mid year, 70% of Mid 
Yr water use charges (9% increase in water 
sales at mid year). Varries with water use.


1.5% more than FY12 projected amount (Actual 
water sales ended up higher than last year and 
higher than projected)


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,076,746 2,026,550 2,187,360 2,253,000 226,450       
NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                     -                   


1700 · Interest


40,768 35,000 16,000 7,500              (27,500)        


WestAmerica
776013 - Operations
776021 - Bldg Fund
776039 - Reserves
776211 - InHouse Constr.


 (RCU CD ended up expiring at the end of 
October)


3600 · Construction New Services 5,177 4,000 4,000 5,000              1,000             
3601 · Construction Service Upgrade 3,163 2,000 6,000 2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
71,589 81,000 81,000  75,400            (5,600)          


AT&T Mt. Jackson - get 2013 estimate
AT&T Woodland - 6 mn @ 1800/mn
Crystal - $800/mn Assumes Crystal will make payments all year.


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 2,758 3,000 1,000  1,000              (2,000)          
IMPAC refunds
So. Cty Credit


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement


2,433 8,000 2,500 2,500              (5,500)          CUWCC membership dues reimburse: $2500


Just a guess.   $13000  $5000.  Assumes 
SCWA will offset from toilet reimbursements 
their costs in helping to administer toilet 
installaions.  (Acutal: In exchange for toilet 
reimbursements, SCWA handling all aspects of 
Direct Install Program, decreasin


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 125,888 133,000 110,500 93,400 (39,600)        


Total Income 2,202,634 2,159,550 2,297,860 2,346,400 186,850       


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 711,464 755,736 711,000          693,626          (62,110)        
5912 · Overtime 23,646 30,270 27,000            30,772            502              
5916 · On-Call Pay 25,885 33,090 29,200            33,090            0                  
5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,620 33,600 36,800 37,100$          3,500           Meter reader (Dross) Meter reader (Dross)


797,615 852,696 804,000 794,590 (58,106)        
Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending -33 0 0 -                     -                   
5920 · Retirement 112,613 119,521 118,000 115,563          (3,958)           Add for Part-time retirement


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge


4031.1. · Base Rate


4031.1. · Water Usage


4031.1. · Base Rate and CDRC 
Combined


Total Salary


3/1/2013







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


2


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Emplo 14,467 14,420 11,200 14,021            (399)             
5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/A 118,333 133,702 125,000 143,762          10,060         
5931 · Retiree health 2,640 2,760 2,760 17,324            14,564         Going to CERPT, full catchup $115/retiree/month X 2 retirees = $2760


5940 · Workers Comp Insura 23,450 25,049 34,000 25,746            697              
271,470 295,452 290,960 316,415 20,963         


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,069,085 1,148,148 1,094,960 1,111,005 (37,143)        


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,579 1,800 1,800 1,800              -                   
Comcast -$70/month: 840
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


Comcast -$70/month: 840
GotoMyPC $19.95/mo = $240
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 3,055 2,720 2,720 2,900              180              
Verizon - $150/mo (F) = $1800
Verizon $75/mo (A) = $900
Misc. parts/holders etc. - $200 (F)


Verizon - $140/mo (F) = $1680
Verizon $70/mo (A) = $840
Misc. parts/holders etc. - $200 (F)


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 1,094 850 850 850                -                   Cook - $53/mo (F) = $636
Misc. parts/batteries = $200 (F)


Cook - $53/mo (F) = $636
Misc. parts/batteries = $200 (F)


6040-S · 
SCADA 
software maint.


725 0 0 -                     -                    
We decided to discontinue E&M services.  All 
SCADA expenses are in separate new line 
below


6040-T · Telephones 14,932 15,400 15,400 16,500            1,100           
Ans. Svc. $150/mo = $1800
Phones  $1,175/mo = $14,100
Long distance $45/mo= $600


Ans. Svc. $130/mo = $1560
Phones  $1,100/mo = $13,200
Long distance = $600


21,385 20,770 20,770 22,050 1,280           


Insurances
6101 · Gen. Liability 25,620 28,000 28,000 21,000            (7,000)            
6102 · Auto/Equipment 7,635  8,000 8,000 14,000            6,000           


33,255 36,000 36,000 35,000 (1,000)          


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 14,725 16,000 16,000 16,000            -                    
Cost is rising but not enough to warrant a new 
vehicle.


6151 · Office Maintenance 4,609 5,000 5,000  4,600              (400)             


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
PacketFusion maint. contract - $800/year
The Compute Wizard - $155/mo = $1860/year 
The Computer Wizard - phone svcer - $20/mo = 
$240
Copy mach. maint - 550/yr
Call One - $400/yr
Misc / Other - $200


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
PacketFusion maint. contract - $800/year
The Compute Wizard - $155/mo = $1860/year
Copy mach. maint - 550/yr
US Netcom - $900/yr
Misc / Other - $200


19,334 21,000 21,000 20,600 (400)             


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 6,581 5,200 7,600 7,850              2,650           


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $230/mo = 
$2760
Sunrise Garbage $1400
Sewer - GVTP ($1100)


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $215/mo = 
$2580
Sunrise Garbage $1300
Sewer - GVTP ($1100)


0 2,780 2,780 5,000              2,220           SCADA Airtime - $65/mo. = $780


Added this line item FY 2012-13.


SCADA - $65/mo. = $780
SCADA $2,000 (2 days of Doug Wirth = 2,000) 


41,612 45,000 52,000 52,000            7,000           


Total Communications


Total Benefits


Total Insurances


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


3/1/2013







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


3


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +


24,892 40,000 50,000 45,000            5,000           1 well rehab
Well #5 El Bonita will likely be ready for a  rehab.
(14,000- 20,000)


6143 · Generator Maintenanc 3,584 0 3,040 3,200              3,200            
bi-annual maint year FY 11/12; no projected 
expenses in FY13  (During the year decided to 
to maintenance on an annual basis)


76,669 92,980 115,420 113,050 20,070         


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 7,808 8,700 8,700 9,020              320              


USA $150
AWWA $420
CSDA $4100
CUWCC $3000 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $950
WCWW $200


USA $150
AWWA $420
CSDA $3750
CUWCC $3000 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $900
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 12,119 1,500 1,500  1,500              -                   


6593 · Governmental Fees


16,106 19,500 20,500 20,650            1,150           


LAFCO $4600
Maps $50
Encroachment permit: $800
CDPH $14,000
HazMat permit $1,200
Election costs: $0


LAFCO $4300
Maps $50
Encroachment permit: $445 
CDPH $13500??
HazMat permit $1,200


36,033 29,700 30,700 31,170 1,470           


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 15,490  16,000 16,000 16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.46 X 12 months) = 
$11,040
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .46 = $1,840
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .46 = $1,656
Other mail


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.45 X 12 months) = 
$10,800
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .45 = $1,800
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .45 = $1,620
Other mail


6430 · Printing Expense 5,706 6,400 6,400  8,450              2,050           


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $2200
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
CCRs $600
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Flushing sched $500
Tagbooks $700


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1600
Doorhangers $175
Turn Off Notices $300
Letterhead $250
CCRs $600
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Flushing sched $500
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 3,791 4,000 5,200  4,000              -                   


Supplies $3000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $40
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


Supplies $2500
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $500
(Bought new meter books this year - $800)


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal N 840 820 820 700                (120)             


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $200
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


Press Democrat $240
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 3,069 1,600 1,600 2,800              1,200           


Antivirus softsware ($30X6) = $200
Workstations for JK: $1000
Misc $400
FM Pro 12 (4 licenses) $1200


Antivirus softsware ($30X6) = $200
Workstations for JK: $1000
Misc $400


6579 · Furniture 0 500 500 500                -                   
Table for main office
Locking file cabinet for Chris Trophy case for old pipe


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


3/1/2013







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


4


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +
28,896 29,320 30,520 32,450            3,130           


Operating Supplies
6300 · Chemicals 16,113 17,000 17,000 17,000            -                   


6880 · Tools and Equipment 4,573 5,000 6,500 6,000              1,000           
Jackhammer: $850
12" cutoff saw: $800


6881 · Safety Equipment 983 1,500 1,500 1,500              -                   
21,669 23,500 25,000 24,500 1,000           


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 3,188 3,400 3,400 3,400              -                   Mission $65/week = $3380 Mission $65/week = $3380
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 8,786 13,000 13,000 13,000            -                    Cost increase for testing & high # of test.


6570 · Consultant Fees 9,184 1,300 2,200 3,300              2,000           
IEDA $2000
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) $800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) $800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6590 · Engineering 659 4,000 4,000 (4,000)          


6610 · Legal 22,414 20,000 34,000 28,000            8,000           Current situations are resolved, nothing on 
horizon. Fee increase


Hoping current situations are resolved


6630 · Audit/Accounting 23,375 27,500 27,500  30,000            2,500           


PAYCHEX $175/mo = $2100
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $7,950
United Bank $1000/mo = $12,000
E-check fees = $900
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
Pam Rones 1099 = $350
County Accounting Fees = $3100


ADP $260/mo = $3120
Authorize.net $55/mo = $660
Auditor $6,500
United Bank $875/mo = $10,500
E-check fees = $800
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
Pam Rones 1099 = $350
County Accounting Fees = $2800


67,606 69,200 84,100 77,700 8,500           


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 1,344 3,400 3,400 3,300              (100)             


Pitney Bowes Mail Machine $327/qtr. = $1308 
(A)
A-Action rents: $2000  


Pitney Bowes Mail Machine $327/qtr. = $1308 
(A)
A-Action rents $2,000  
* Currently getting quote to trade in copy 
machine for upgraded machine we lease


6840 · Building & Warehouse 27,000 27,000 27,000 27,000            -                   
Building: $1,800 / month
Warehouse $450/month


Building: $1,800 / month
Warehouse $450/month


28,344 30,400 30,400 30,300 (100)             
Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related tra 2,900 4,000 1,700  4,150              150              
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $3,500 


JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $3,500 (Assuming the State does not 
ressurect the Expense Reimbursement Grant 
program.)


7201 · Vehicle Gas 24,064 26,500 26,500  26,500            -                   Based in FY 2012-13 projected. Based in FY 2011-12 projected.


7300 · Travel Reimbursemen 6,224 6,400 6,400 6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


33,188 36,900 34,600 37,050 150              


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 1,061 1,500 1,500 1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450 $205 X 7 = $1450
6021.3 · T-shirts 1,021 1,200 1,200  1,200              -                   
6021.4 · Jackets 173 360 360 360                -                   3 jackets 3 jackets


2,255 3,060 3,060 3,060 -                   


Utilities


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


3/1/2013







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


5


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +
7320 · Electricity 88,088 90,000 90,000 90,000            -                   Based on this year's projected. Based on this year's projected.
7321 · Propane 3,470 3,100 3,100 4,000              900              Based on this year's projected. Based on this year's projected.


91,558 93,100 93,100 94,000 900              


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 460,192 485,930 524,670 520,930 35,000         


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,529,277 1,634,078 1,619,630 1,631,935 (2,143)          


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $673,357 $525,472 $678,230 $714,465 188,993$     


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8517 · Field/Office equipment 5,613 5,000 4,500  1,000              Pipe locator Field:  Leak detection equipment. $5,000
8573 · Vehicles 0 0 0 -                     -                   No new vehicles this year. No new vehicles this year.


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites
228 15,000 15,000 21,000            6,000           


Park Ave. foundation: $5,000; liner $8,000
Lower Summit liner: $6,000
Other: $2,000


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 -                     -                   Replace MIOX Chlorine System at MRTP Replace MIOX Chlorine System at MRTP


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 5,841 20,000 19,500 22,000 2,000           


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Reven 236,900 230,000 238,600 245,800 15,800         
8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 240,000 220,000 370,000 390,000          170,000       Calculated off surplus/deficit Calculated off surplus/deficit
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000            -                   
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 516,900 490,000 648,600 675,800 185,800       
DISASTER EXPENSE -                   


5141 · Disaster Wages - Staff 0 0 0 -                     -                   
7895 · Disaster Costs - Svces/Suppli 0 0 0 -                     -                   


Total DISASTER EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 -                   


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 150,616 15,472 10,130 16,665 1,193           Want this to be between 10,000 and 20,000
Want this to be a number between 10,000 
and 20,000


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 4,370 27,000            27,000            27,000            -                   2011-12 slow year
Annual Assessment (County) 707,210 710,000          702,000          710,000          -                   
Prior Year Assessment 18,596 40,000            37,192            40,000            -                   
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 236,900 230,000          238,600          245,800          15,800         Transfer from Operations Transfer from Operations
Interest 36,339 25,000            23,600            25,000            -                   
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 1 84,424 -                 -                   
CDC Grants, CIP IV-B, Project 2 108,513 -                 -                   
CDC Grants, CIP 2012 417,764 -                     -                    


Funds from Reserves 740,169 380,000          1,525,000       
Funds from reserves needed to balance Capital 
Budget, 


CDC Grants, CIP 2013 61,388 914,250          914,250          (914,250)      Should be $974,250
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 240,000 220,000          370,000          390,000          170,000       result of higher water sales
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Opera 25,000 25,000            25,000            25,000            -                   
TOTAL REVENUE 2,680,673 2,191,250 2,717,642 2,987,800 796,550       


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Total Utilities


3/1/2013







ATTACHMENT A.  SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2013-2014


6


FY 11-12
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY12-13 
BUDGET


FY 12-13
Projected  


 FY 13-14
BUDGET 


Difference 
FY14-FY13 


Budgets FY 13-14 Original notes FY 12-13 Original notes +
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 685,570 687,000          687,000          687,000          -                   Refinancing USDA Bonds?  Approx $60K less
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300          170,300          170,300          -                   
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014          234,014          234,014          -                   
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,089,755 1,091,314 1,091,314 1,091,314 -                   


CIP IV-B, Project 1 739                     -                 -                 -                    
CIP IV-B, Project 2 56,435 -                 (11,060)          -                   Rio Vista Terrace costs plus settlement amount
2012 CIP 1,157,933   -                     
2013 CIP 87,111 -                 -                 -                     
2013 CIP Carryover 1,219,000       1,489,811       -                 (1,219,000)    @$80,000 in FY12 on design
2014 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 106,000          138,036          138,036       


2014 CIP Construction 
1,592,000       


835,964          


Design spent in 2013, construction obligated in 
May 2013, will be spent in 2014 as carryover, 
project change from 2013


Design in 2013, construction obligated in May 
2013


2015 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 178,149          
2015 CIP design funds spent in 2014 CM in 
2015 ($101,665)


2015 CIP Construction 700,000          
CIP 2015 construction contract awarded in 
2014, funds spent in 2015


In-House Construction Projects 20,854 25,000            25,000            25,000            -                   
Total Capital Expenses 1,323,072            2,836,000       1,609,751       1,877,149       (958,851)      


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,412,827 3,927,314 2,701,065 2,968,463 (958,851)      


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 267,846 -1,736,064 16,577 19,337 1,755,401    
Added row for reserve funds needed for capital 
projects in the 2014 Budget  


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Balance 200,000               200,000          200,000          200,000          -                   


Budget Reserve (10% of Operating E 158,770               163,408          163,408          163,194          (214)             
Economic Reserve (15% of Operatin 238,155               245,112          245,112          244,790          (321)             
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of D 238,155               272,829          272,829          272,829          -                   
Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000          250,000          250,000          -                   


   Total District Policy 1,085,081            1,131,348       1,131,348       1,130,812       (536)             


TOTAL Reserves EOY 4,791,350            3,018,140       4,092,335       2,565,728       (452,412)      $801,665 obligation for 2015 CIP
   Reserves Above (below) Policy 3,706,269            1,886,792       2,960,987       1,434,916       (451,876)      


DISTRICT FUNDS


CIRF 2,930,298            1,463,507       3,239,800       1,694,137       230,630       
$801,665 obligation for 2015 CIP, EOY CIRF 
should be approx $2.4M 


OPERATING RESERVE 225,000               409,270          403,928          407,984          (1,286)          


OPERATIONS 788,542               200,000          200,000          200,000          -                   


CD 632,584               696,756          -                 -                     (696,756)      
CD ended in October 2012 at approximately 
$672,925, moved to CIRF


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 109,076               102,757          102,757          102,757          -                   


BUILDING 105,850               145,850          145,850          160,850          15,000         


3/1/2013





		Item V-B - FY 2013-2014 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 



		Item V-B.1 Att A Draft Budget

		Combined (BR+CDRC)








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 7, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA 
BONDS  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report/provide direction on possibility of 
refinancing District USDA bonds.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Refinancing District bonds may save District up to 
$60,000 annually.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board has expressed interest for some time in investigating whether District loans and 
bonds could be refinance for possible savings.  Staff looked into this in the summer of 2012 
and were told that the USDA bonds could not be refinanced by USDA.  In February, staff 
received an unsolicited offer from Weist Law to look into District loans and bonds to see if 
some savings could be achieved by refinancing the loans or bonds.  On February 22nd  we 
received a proposal from Weist Law that with a public offering of the USDA bonds, the 
District could achieve savings of approximately $60,0000 annually and over $1.8 million over 
the remaining life of the bonds.  The repayment period would remain the same – 20 years on 
the 1992 series and 30 years on the 2003 series.  Weist Law proposed becoming the 
District’s Bond Counsel and proceeding with the refinancing (Attachment A, letter from Weist 
Law). 
 
After receiving the Weist proposal I have been investigating all aspects of this proposal – 
who is Weist Law, do the numbers add up, what do the references say about Weist Law, 
what do others in the industry say about Weist Law.?  Following are the results of my 
investigations: 
 


• The references listed in Weist Law’s Statement of Qualifications (Attachment B) that I 
connected with provided positive remarks.  Interestingly, one reference listed was 
from the USDA Rural Development Office in Visalia.  He had positive remarks but 
also said that USDA does not recommend bond counsel; they provide a list of 
potential bond counsel.   He sent me the list -  Weist Law is on that list; so is Meyers 
Nave.   


• I called two people I used to work with in Santa Barbara County about Weist Law and 
refinancing in general.  They had not heard of Weist Law and suggested talking with a 
person in the industry with whom both had had prior positive experience (as had I).  
His name is David Houston, and he works for Citigroup.  He said he hadn’t heard of 







REFINANCING DISTRICT USDA BONDS 2  
March 7, 2013 
 


 


Weist Law and offered to look at our bonds to see if he could “do something for us”.  
He submitted an analysis that did not promise the savings that the Weist Law 
proposal does.  I am to discuss this with him on the phone.   


• Brandis Tallman did our last financing.  I am in communication with them regarding 
Weist Law (they know of the firm) and our refinancing.  I will provide that information 
at the Board meeting.   


• As noted above, Meyers Nave has a financial section that does refinancings.  I have 
provided our bond information to David Warner, District Legal Counsel, who is 
providing that to the appropriate Meyers Nave staff.    


 
We should be appreciative to Weist Law for reigniting this item.  Their analysis shows that 
the District can save substantial funds through refunding the USDA bonds.  My investigation 
has shown that they are who they say they are and that they have done this many times 
before.  There are other firms/groups that have done this before too.  My investigation has 
also revealed the unanimous opinion that this is a great time to be doing this financing.   One 
question is how do we determine the best firm to lead this for the District?   Another question 
is do we want independent financial advice on this (a financial advisor at an hourly or flat 
fee)? 
 
Board Members may have other questions for staff.  It appears we should move forward 
quickly on this before market conditions change.   
 
 







February 21, 2013 


Sent via Email 


Mr. Steve Mack 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA 95446 


Re:  Refunding Certain of the District’s Outstanding Long-Term Debt Obligations 


Dear Mr. Mack: 


As you are aware, over the course of the past several weeks we have been actively communicating 
with several targeted banks and underwriters (i.e., those that we know to be the most aggressive in our 
industry), looking to uncover the best economic strategy (both structure and rates) for the District to 
refinance certain of the District’s outstanding tax-exempt and taxable long-term debt obligations, and 
thereby capture the greatest amount of savings possible for the District (the “Refunding”). 


We have now successfully completed our initial due diligence efforts, having discussed with banks 
and underwriters the underlying legal and credit structure with several banks (and other “Private Placement” 
sources) as well as certain aggressive municipal bond underwriters. Based upon the responses received, we 
have determined that a public offering (as opposed to a	 Private Placement) is the superior method of 
Refunding for the District given the present status of the financial market, and will therefore provide the 
District with the best economic potential outcome (the “2013 Refunding Obligation”). Please see the 
attached draft Refunding analysis for details as to the Refunding calculations. 


Based upon the rate indications received, we have teamed-up with Southwest Securities to present 
the attached pro-forma spreadsheets, laying out the numbers based upon a publically offered transaction. 
Upon your review of the numbers, you will see that we are projecting that the Refunding will produce a 
total cash flow savings to the District of 1,831,654, which equates to about $60,000 per year over the 
remaining 30 year life of the issue. After netting out contributed District funds on hand of approximately 
$2,353, the total cash-flow savings to the District is approximately $1,829,301. Using present value 
calculations (i.e, the amount of cash required to be invested today at 2.72% that will accrue to $1,829,301 in 
30 years) the Refunding still produces a robust $1,260,163 Net Present Value (NPV) savings. Based upon a 
refunded par value of $9,285,000, this represents an extremely robust 13.57% NPV savings, which far 
exceeds the commonly accepted minimum industry standard of 3%.   


Again, please see the attached draft Refunding analysis for details as to the Refunding 
calculations. 


Attachment A







	


	


PAGE 2 OF 2


 
 


This letter generally describes the overall Refunding opportunity, and will hopefully help you more 
thoroughly understand the financial calculations as well as elicit productive discussions and possible 
direction to proceed with a timely Refunding. Please keep in mind that it is our job to make sure that all of 
your questions are answered and that the entire process is handled in the highest professional manner.  
 


We provide you with all resolutions (as well as a customizable sample staff reports that you can use 
to convert to fit your own particular style and format), notices, reports and documents necessary to 
successfully consummate the Refunding transaction. We structure and monitor the escrow arrangement 
(including call notices) to ensure full and proper defeasance of all District obligations being refunded. We 
also take care of all required IRS and CDIAC notices and reports. We conclude by providing the District 
with a complete transcript of all relevant documents, notices and certificates pertaining to the Refunding.    
 


Please review the attached Refunding calculations at your convenience. After you have had a 
chance to review the attached numbers I would like to discuss the matter with you in more detail. In the 
meantime, please call if you have any questions whatsoever. Thank you. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 


        
 







THE WEIST LAW FIRM 
Municipal Bond & Securities Counsel


STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 


Last Update: August 2012 


108 Whispering Pines Drive, Suite 235 
Scotts Valley, California  95066 


Telephone:  (831) 438-7900  WWW.WEISTLAW.COM 


Attachment B







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 1 of 9 


STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 


We are pleased to have this opportunity to present our Statement of Qualifications, and 
summary of highlighted bond and note transactions, attached as an appendix hereto, in which our 
firm has been most recently involved as either bond counsel, disclosure counsel, underwriter’s 
counsel or securities counsel. 


INTRODUCTION 


As one of California’s leading bond counsel firms, The Weist Law Firm has established a 
proven track record and an outstanding reputation in securities law and municipal bond matters, 
having advised clients on billions of dollars in transactions to finance California public works 
projects. Since our founding by municipal law and public finance lawyer Cameron A. Weist over 
20 years ago, we have steadily forged a reputation as being a respected leader in the area of 
public finance and municipal bond law. Our time-tested prominence has spanned numerous 
challenging economic cycles and legislative climates. 


With vast experience handling all types of public securities, our California-based law 
firm is known for its ability to undertake any municipal financing transaction – from the most 
routine to the utmost complex. We serve state and local municipalities, national and international 
banks, investment banking firms and many other entities that seek the counsel of an experienced 
lawyer in public securities and municipal bond financing matters. 


The types of projects in which our firm is engaged typically includes the financing of 
public facilities such as water and wastewater facilities, irrigation and drainage facilities, 
educational equipment and facilities, streets, bridges, government buildings, single-family and 
multi-family housing, recreational facilities, industrial development facilities, electrical 
generation and transmission facilities, alternative energy facilities and waste-to-energy facilities, 
police and fire facilities, parking structures, solid waste facilities, dock and wharf facilities, 
geological hazard abatement facilities, seawalls and various other similar type public 
improvement projects. 


Our firm has been involved in, and has successfully implemented, a wide array of multi-
modal financing instruments including, but without limitation, certificates of participation 
(COPs); installment sale obligations; water and wastewater revenue bonds; enterprise revenue 
bonds; Mello-Roos bonds; several variations of Joint Exercise of Powers Agency (JPA) bonds 
(both stand-alone and “pooled”); assessment district bonds; collateralized mortgage obligations; 
capital appreciation bonds; clean renewable energy bonds, industrial development bonds; tax 
allocation bonds; general obligation bonds; municipal loans and leases; promissory notes; 
refunding bonds and notes; tax credit bonds; multi-family mortgage revenue bonds; private 
placement securities; interest rate strips; miscellaneous variations of swap contracts, auction rate 
securities, derivative securities, reinvestment contracts; and various forms of bond, grant, 
revenue and tax anticipation notes. 


In short, we bring our local presence and trusted nationwide reputation, as well as our 
vast experience and expertise, to bear for each public finance project we undertake. 







 


 


The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 2 of 9 


 


INDUSTRY LEADER 
 


For over two decades The Weist Law Firm has been a leader in the area of public finance 
and municipal securities law, annually ranking as one of the most active in the State of 
California. Our rankings reflect more than simply the volume of transactions handled by The 
Weist Law Firm for our public finance clients year after year. They are evidence of the 
consistent quality of service rendered by our firm and the accumulated experience we draw upon 
to serve clients efficiently, effectively and creatively. 
 
ACCOLADES 
 


The Weist Law Firm has served as bond counsel on several unique bond financings over 
the years and has continued to occupy a prominent position in this practice area. We believe that 
our firm offers unparalleled experience in creatively structuring and consummating public 
finance transactions. Much of this experience comes from the experience we have gained over 
the years in “unwinding” troubled financings structured by other public finance consultants. In 
order to legally and effectively “dismantle” a bond transaction, it is imperative that one has the 
experience and know-how to put a bond issue together properly in the first place.  
 


We have gained the reputation as a “go-to-law-firm” for complex financing structures 
often involving several underlying debt compositions that have been (or, are to be) commingled 
at a JPA level in the form of Marks-Roos pooled revenue bonds. We have also been able to help 
several clients design their own creative revenue bond programs that involve various diverse 
revenue pledges or contributions of one form or another—leading to significant cost savings and 
resulting in successful financings that were otherwise thought impossible.  


 


The Weist Law Firm worked on one of California’s first and largest “water bank” 
(aquifer recharge) financings, which was underwritten on a variable, swapped to fixed multi-
modal structure involving tax-exempt and taxable components. We have structured the State of 
California’s first ever successful purchase of securities through the Department of Commerce under 
the McCorquodale-Neilsen-Hauser Rural Renaissance Act of 1986. We have worked on one of the 
largest CREBs financings structured to date, which was issued to finance a Caltrans solar project. 
We prepared the documentation necessary in forming California’s first geological abatement district. 
We have recently helped several large national and international Banks to penetrate the public 
finance arena to purchase municipal securities for their own account on a privately placed basis 
(called “Private Placements”), which in turn has created tremendous competition leading to interest 
rate decline. Within the past year we have worked on over twenty such Private Placements that have 
each outperformed the publicly offered alternative – thereby saving our clients’ a great deal of time 
and money. 


 


We also maintain an excellent working relationship with the United States Department of 
Agriculture (“USDA”) as well as SRF. Over the course of the past couple of years we have 
worked on some of the more complex issued ever encountered by USDA. By working in concert 
with the lead lawyers at USDA’s Office of General Counsel, we were able to create the internal 
legal templates that have led to what has turned out to be many successful project financings for 
our clients, as well as all other clients utilizing USDA financing in the future.  This successful 
working relation has, in turn, led to our engagement directly with USDA to provide webinar 
training for all Area Specialist, with the first such webinar having taken place in 2012.   







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 3 of 9 


DIVERSITY AND INGENUITY 


To complement The Weist Law Firm’s expertise in the municipal law, securities law and 
tax law aspects of public finance, we are also educated and trained in several branches of 
economics, urban and regional planning, public policy, business administration, operations 
research, demography, accounting, finance and real estate. These skills are applied to a broad 
array of financing projects and programs, and address such issues as infrastructure development, 
economic development, development feasibility, policy research, strategic planning, program 
and project financing evaluation. 


Our dedicated broad-minded professionals bring vast experience from various disciplines 
to serve the increasingly sophisticated financial needs of our local government clients. We 
always strive to develop clear and concise reports and presentations which often times become 
the basis upon which government and its stakeholders gain a fundamental common 
understanding of the matters at hand. We have counseled literally hundreds of municipalities to 
navigate the myriad legal and financial impediments in order to foster successful projects that 
achieve public acceptance. 


We have developed an expertise in joint powers authority pooled financings, lease and 
installment sale financings, tax increment financings, special assessment financings, Private 
Placements, tribal economic development bonds, clean renewable energy bonds, special districts 
formations, USDA financings, urban redevelopment projects, impact fee legislation, municipal 
utility district formations, capital recovery charge programs and numerous other value-added 
services focusing on public improvement projects. 


Our extensive experience with a variety of financing techniques, and our expertise in the 
myriad of legal issues, including federal tax law, securities law, and state statutory and 
constitutional provisions, enable us to assist our clients in meeting their financing goals, and 
providing financial solutions that serve both the immediate and long-term best interests of each 
client. 


We are also acutely aware of the time constraints facing each new project, and take a 
great deal of pride in our ability to be responsive to a client’s needs for agility and speed in 
concluding a transaction. We strive to take advantage of market conditions whenever it would be 
advantageous and we make every effort to complete a project as quickly as possible. 


INDUSTRY RELATIONS 


The Weist Law Firm has the range of capabilities to handle all aspects of securities 
finance, from the routine to the complex.  In addition to our extensive knowledge of debt and 
equity financings, we maintain a working relationship with USDA, SRF, Department of Public 
Health, and other state and federal agencies providing municipal finance enhancements, as well 
as all of the major bond insurance providers, rating agencies, and a cross section of national and 
international banks providing letters of credit, direct placements, and other credit enhancement 
products.  







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 4 of 9 


CREATING VALUE 


As a complement to our bond counsel practice, we provide a full range of related services 
for our clients, such as: analyzing and procuring grant and low interest rate loan opportunities; 
preparing detailed refunding reports that analyze debt compositions, and set forth refunding 
alternatives that maximize savings opportunities; designating and issuing state and federal tax 
credit and other forms of “Stimulus Bonds;” conducting “Prop 218” rate adjustment campaigns; 
preparing sensitivity reports; formation of joint exercise of powers agencies; formation of 
assessment districts and community facility districts, for both pay-as-you-go public safety 
components, as well as for backbone infrastructure; arbitrage and rebate compliance; and 
conducting General Obligation Bond campaigns. 


We are a “Recognized Bond Counsel” for certain State and Federal programs such as the 
USDA Rural Development Grant and Loan Program and certain other such state sponsored low 
interest grant and loan programs. We are also a “Recognized Bond Counsel” for most statewide 
joint powers authorities, such as the California Statewide Communities Development Authority, 
the California Enterprise Development Authority, the Independent Cities Lease Finance 
Authority, and the like. 


Many of our clients are infrequent issuers of public debt, having not been previously 
involved in complex public finance projects. We always take the extra time required to ensure 
that they are full partners in the process. Our willingness to provide enhanced customized 
personal service to each and every one of our clients – no matter the sophistication level – not 
only results in a superior transaction, but also leads to better public relations as well as better 
relations between staff and its board or council.  


We carefully and meticulously counsel our clients about each facet of the public finance 
process, and about the advantages of choosing one form of financing technique or strategy over 
another. In many cases, a blending of techniques and strategies becomes the most advantageous 
economic strategy. In all cases, we provide clients with all the information they need to 
competently and successfully conclude a project. 


OUR CLIENTS 


We represent a variety of different types of governmental entities including cities, 
counties, redevelopment agencies, joint powers authorities, water agencies, sanitary districts, 
irrigation districts, community services districts, port authorities, tribal nations, non-profit 
organizations, utility districts, school districts, community college districts, harbor districts, fire 
districts and various other special districts throughout California. 


We provide the appropriate legal, tax and disclosure advice and act as liaison between 
staff, financial advisor, underwriter, trustee and bondholder. We “quarterback” each transaction 
with diligence and professionalism. This allows us to foster teamwork that typically results in 
fully developed strategies that accommodate the desires of the issuer, while at the same time 
accounting for legal and economic peculiarities and impediments that could otherwise 
potentially affect the success of a public finance transaction. 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 5 of 9 


“The internal standard we espouse is to earn each client’s confidence on the very first 
matter of involvement, and then continue earning it on every matter thereafter.” 


HELPING STAFF SUCCEED 


Although the client is typically the municipality as an entity, we interface with, and 
answer to “staff,” being the city managers and city administrators, county administrators, finance 
directors, treasures, executive directors, general managers and community development 
directors, who, in turn, take their direction from corresponding boards of directors, boards of 
supervisors and city councils. We understand and relish our roll of helping “staff” succeed. We 
also understand politics, and the various related “pressure points” commonly associated with the 
financing of public improvement projects. Ensuring the legal efficacy of each transaction is our 
number one responsibility; however, we never lose sight of the fact that the management of 
social issues is a crucial component of our engagement.  


In addition to providing the highest caliber transactional documents, we take the time to 
produce well-written, clearly understandable “staff reports” and other corresponding agenda 
material that management can confidently rely upon when taking matters to its board or council. 
We are always ready to publically present the subject matter to the requisite board or council 
when called upon to do so by staff. We have spoken in public forums literally thousands of 
times, and are very comfortable and articulate in this type of setting. 


Saving time and money, increasing financial flexibility, enhancing staff’s knowledge and 
understanding of each step in the process, and positioning each public project for future success 
are among the many benefits delivered by our focused, results-oriented practice. 


PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 


The Weist Law Firm is proud of its history of professional affiliations with the following 
organizations:  State Bar of California, American Bar Association, California Association of Bond 
Lawyers, California Association of Sanitation Agencies, National Association of Bond Lawyers, 
Association of California Water Agencies, County Engineer’s Association, Bay Area Municipal 
Forum and Public Securities Association. 


LEGAL OPINION 


The professional legal opinion of The Weist Law Firm, passing upon the tax-exempt status 
of proceedings for the public issuance of governmental securities, is accepted by all major municipal 
bond underwriters, banks, and financial institutions that normally purchase these securities. 


CLIENT REPRESENTATION 


A list of public sector clients which The Weist Law Firm (which includes past and present 
affiliations) has represented as either bond counsel or disclosure counsel is as follows: 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 6 of 9 


CITIES 


City of Anderson City of Grover Beach City of Pismo Beach 
City of Arcata City of Guadalupe City of Ridgecrest 
City of Atascadero City of Gustine City of Riverbank 
City of Atwater City of Isleton City of San Francisco 
City of Avenal City of King City of San Rafael 
City of Bakersfield City of Lakeport City of Santa Cruz 
City of Brentwood City of Livingston City of Scotts Valley 
City of Capitola City of Los Banos City of Selma 
City of Coalinga City of Marina City of Shasta Lake 
City of Colma City of McFarland City of Soledad 
City of Crescent City City of Mendota City of Susanville 
City of Dos Palos City of Merced City of Stockton 
City of Dublin City of Morgan Hill City of Tehachapi 
City of Escalon City of Morro Bay City of Tracy 
City of Firebaugh City of Oakdale City of Yuba City 
City of Fort Bragg City of Pacifica City of Wasco 
City of Fresno City of Pacific Grove City of Watsonville 
City of Gonzales City of Palm Desert City of Woodland 
City of Greenfield City of Paso Robles 


COUNTIES 


County of Amador County of King County of Santa Cruz 
County of Butte County of Madera County of Siskiyou 
County of Calaveras County of Monterey County of Stanislaus 
County of Del Norte County of San Bernardino County of Sutter 
County of Humboldt County of San Francisco County of Tulare 
County of Kern 


WATER DISTRICTS 


Aromas Water District Madera Irrigation District 
Byron Bethany Irrigation District Padre Dam Municipal Water District 
Calaveras County Water District Olivenhain Municipal Water District 
Central San Joaquin Water District San Lorenzo Valley Water District 
Clearlake Oaks Water District Santa Nella County Water District 
Del Puerto Water District Scotts Valley Water District 
Glide Water District Soquel Creek Water District 
Kanawha Water District South Feather Water and Power Agency 
Mammoth Community Water District Squaw Valley County Water District 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 7 of 9 


OTHER DISTRICTS 


Auburn Valley Community Services District Muroc Joint Unified School District 
Barstow Heights Community Services District Needles Unified School District 
Bear Valley Community Services District Palo Verde Community College District 
Byron Sanitary District Place de Mer Geological Abatement District
Channel Islands Community Service District Planada Community Services District 
Discovery Bay Community Services District Quincy Community Services District 
Hartnell Community College District River High Community Services District 
Hayfork Fire Protection District Santa Cruz County Sanitation District 
Jamestown Sanitary District Shaffer Union School District 
Janesville Union School District Sierra Foothills Public Utility District 
June Lake Public Utility District South Feather Water and Power Agency 
June Lake Fire District Sweetwater Union High School District 
Kern Community College District Victor Valley Community College District 
Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District Victor Valley Union High School District 
Lake Arrowhead Community Service District West Hills Community College District 
Long Beach Community College District West Kern Community College District 
Luther Burbank School District Zayante Fire Protection District 
Middletown Unified School District 


PUBLIC FINANCING AND HOUSING AUTHORITIES 


Arcata Joint Powers Financing Authority Kanawha-Glide Public Financing Authority 
Auburn Valley Public Financing Authority King City Public Financing Authority 
Avenal Public Financing Authority Mammoth Public Financing Authority 
Brentwood Public Financing Authority Merced Public Financing Authority 
Byron Bethany Public Financing Authority Monterey Housing Authority 
California Communities Development Authority Palm Desert Financing Authority 
Capitola Public Financing Authority Pismo Beach Public Financing Authority 
Coalinga Public Financing Authority Riverbank Public Financing Authority 
Crescent City Public Financing Authority Sacramento Transportation Authority 
Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority Scotts Valley Public Financing Authority 
Grover Beach Financing Authority Suisun City Housing Authority 
Humboldt Waste Management Authority Susanville Public Financing Authority 
Independent Cities Finance Authority Yuba City Public Financing Authority 
June Lake Public Financing Authority Wasco Public Financing Authority 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 8 of 9 


REFERENCES 


Please feel free to contact the following individuals as references of our ability to serve 
as bond counsel, disclosure counsel, underwriter’s counsel, or securities counsel: 


Jeffrey L. Meyer Rick Gilmore Jim Mueller 
Finance Director General Manager General Manager 


Calaveras County Water Dist. Byron Bethany Irrigation Dist. San Lorenzo Valley Water Dist 
423 E. St. Charles Street 7995 Bruns Road 13060 Highway 9 
San Andreas, CA  95249 Byron, CA 94514 Boulder Creek, CA  95006 
(209) 754-3102 (925) 634-3534 (831) 430-4625 


Wayne Hammar Pete Yribarren Kevin Rice 
Treasurer-Tax Collector State Programs Director City Manager 


County of Siskiyou USDA Rural Development City of Pismo Beach 
311 Fourth St., Room 104 3530 W. Orchard Ct. 760 Mattie Road 
Yreka, CA  96097 Visalia, CA 93277 Pismo Beach, CA  93449 
(530) 842-8342 (559) 734-8732 x108 (805) 773-4657 


William D. Harrison Robert Porfiri Margaret Silveira 
General Manager City Manager City Manager 


Del Puerto Water District City of Susanville City of Lakeport 
17840 Ward Avenue 66 North Lassen Street 225 Park Street 
Patterson, CA  95363 Susanville, CA  96130 Lakeport, CA  95453 
(209) 892-4470 (530) 252-5107 (707) 263-5615 


COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE 


Highly motivated and driven by our history of success, we are continuously expanding and 
“fine-tuning” our capabilities in order to maintain our commitment to meeting the specialized legal 
and financial needs of our clients.  Our proven ability to ascertain and define a client’s needs, then 
provide superior support and guidance each step of the way, execute on a timely basis, and close 
quality transactions has transpired as a result of our very real commitment to excellence.  







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Page 9 of 9 


CONCLUSION 


In summary, we believe that our proven track record along with our corresponding broad 
base of public finance experience, combined with our genuine focus on helping staff to succeed on 
each project financing, uniquely sets us apart from all others in the industry.  


We would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our existing clients for their 
valued support over the years. To our new clients, we assure you that we will work to build a lasting 
relationship by delivering services in a manner that respects the trust you place in us. 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 1 - 


APPENDIX 


HIGHLIGHTED BOND AND NOTE TRANSACTIONS 


~ California Enterprise Development Authority, Recovery Zone Economic Development
Bonds, (Biomass Waste-to-Energy Power Plant Project): $29,930,000  


~ South Feather Water and Power Agency, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds $3,342,264


~ City of Pacifica, (Conversion of Auction Rate Certificates), Certificates of Participation:
$19,815,000 


~ County of Siskiyou, California, Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes: $10,000,000


~ City and County of San Francisco, Certificates of Participation: $22,549,489


~ City of Selma, Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes: $1,750,000


~ Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, Series 2012 Enterprise Revenue Bonds (Water
and Wastewater Financing Projects): $14,150,000 


~ City of Capitola, Improvement Refunding Bonds: $3,923,000


~ Susanville Public Financing Authority, (Utility Enterprises Project), Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Senior Series A: $9,700,000 


~ Susanville Public Financing Authority, (Utility Enterprises Project), Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Subordinate Series B: $25,160,000 


~ Hayfork Fire Protection District, Certificates of Participation, Public Safety Facility Project:
$600,000 


~ City of Gustine,  Certificates of Participation, City Hall Project: $950,000


~ Grover Beach Improvement Agency, Tax Allocation Bonds: $4,390,000


~ Riverbank Redevelopment Agency (Stanislaus County), Riverbank Reinvestment Project,
Tax Allocation Bonds: $12,315,000 


~ Riverbank Redevelopment Agency (Stanislaus County), Riverbank Reinvestment Project,
Tax Allocation Housing Set-Aside Bonds: $3,120,000 


~ California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transportation Authority, Clean Renewable
Energy Bonds, (CalTrans Projects): $19,999,999  


~ Sacramento Transportation Authority, Measure A Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Variable Rate),
Series A : $106,100,000; Measure A Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Variable Rate), Series B : 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 2 - 


$106,100,000; and Measure A Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Variable Rate), Series C: $106,100,000: 
Total: $318,300,000 


~ City of Tracy, Refunding Improvement Bonds, Wastewater Facilities Project: $17,150,000


~ City of Morgan Hill, Cochrane Business Park Assessment District: $3,500,000


~ County of Santa Cruz, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Place De Mer Water
Improvement District:  $423,558 


~ City of Scotts Valley, Pasatiempo Pines Assessment District, Improvement Bonds
Wastewater Facilities Project, First Issue: $2,614,300 


~ City of Brentwood, Brentwood Improvement Project No. 2: $3,499,000


~ City of Capitola, Tradewinds Assessment District Bonds: $1,585,721


~ City of Tehachapi, Refunding Assessment District Bonds: $1,575,000


~ Housing Authority of the County of Monterey, Floating Rate Demand, Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bond (Woodridge Project) - Remarketed Issue: $3,000,000 


~ City of Scotts Valley, Green Hills Assessment District: $1,037,000


~ Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District, Certificates of Participation, (Little Johns
Creek Project): $4,950,000 


~ City of Brentwood, Certificates of Participation, Capital Improvement Project: $5,930,000


~ Marina Redevelopment Agency, Certificates of Participation, Series A: $2,000,000;  and
Series B: $3,000,000 


~ Luther Burbank School District (Santa Clara County), Series 2008 B & C General Obligation
Bonds: $4,139,993.85 


~ City of Scotts Valley, North Scotts Valley Drive Refunding Assessment District: $1,762,580


~ City of Scotts Valley, Green Hills Estates Subdivision Assessment District, Limited
Obligation Improvement Bonds:  $1,390,000 


~ City of Yuba City, Sutter County, California, North Yuba City Drainage Phase I, Limited
Obligation Bonds: $1,658,090 


~ County of Stanislaus, Fox Hollow Assessment District, Limited Obligation Bonds: $710,000


~ County of Santa Cruz, Bostwick Lane Street Improvement Project, Limited Obligation
Bonds: $361,910 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 3 - 


~ City of Brentwood, Limited Obligation Improvement Bond Anticipation Notes: $5,240,800


~ Brentwood Joint Powers Financing Authority, (Contra Costa County, California), Series A
and Series B, Limited Obligation Revenue Bonds: $17,800,000 


~ City of Morro Bay, Mimosa Street Assessment District Bonds: $162,773


~ Avenal Public Financing Authority, (Kings County, California), Local Agency Revenue
Bonds: $11,000,000 


~ City of Tehachapi, East Tehachapi Boulevard Improvement Project, Limited Obligation
Improvement Bonds: $1,750,000 


~ Wasco Public Financing Authority, (Kern County, California), Local Agency Revenue
Bonds, Series A: $25,000,000;  Series B: $10,000,000;  Total: $35,000,000  


~ City of Gonzales, Johnson Canyon-Fanoe Road Improvement Project, Limited Obligation
Improvement Bonds: $643,606.85 


~ City of Tehachapi, Community Facilities District,  Special Tax Bonds: $7,000,000


~ City of Yuba City, Certificates of Participation (Police Building Project): $5,000,000


~ City of Marina, General Obligation Bonds: $829,000


~ Kirkwood Meadows Public Utilities District, Refunding Assessment District, Limited
Obligation Improvement Bonds: $2,324,565.78 


~ Redevelopment Agency of the City of Brentwood, Brentwood Redevelopment Project, Tax
Allocation Bonds, Series A: $5,330,000 


~ Scotts Valley Public Financing Authority (Santa Cruz County, California): Local Agency
Revenue Bonds: $34,000,000 


~ Marina Redevelopment Agency, Public Safety Building Project, Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series A: $1,805,000 


~ Scotts Valley Water District, Water Revenue Bonds: $2,350,000


~ City of Tehachapi, Summit Assessment District, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds:
$2,874,000 


~ City of Atwater, Special Tax Bonds: $17,750,000


~ City of Gustine, Series 2012 Certificates of Participation (Wastewater System Improvement
Projects) (Bank Qualified): $1,225,000 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 4 - 


~ City of Yuba City, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds: $14,405,100


~ County of Madera, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds: Series A $1,192,500:  Series B
$4,500,000 (Bass Lake Roads) 


~ Crescent City Public Financing Authority (Del Norte County, California):  Local Agency
Revenue Bonds:  $2,500,000 


~ City of Capitola, Certificates of Participation: $9,395,000


~ City of Santa Cruz, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Chestnut Street Assessment
District:  $1,539,000 


~ City of Los Banos, Certificates of Participation, (Sewage Disposal System Expansion):
$4,995,000 


~ City of Stockton, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds (San Joaquin County), Spanos
Park Assessment District:  $7,740,000 


~ Coalinga Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds:  Series A $11,280,000:  Series B
$6,130,000 


~ City of Riverbank Public Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds:  Series A $1,975,000:  Series
B $4,350,000 


~ Town of Colma, Refunding Improvement Bonds, Colma Local Improvement District No. 1
Reassessment Project: $10,750,000 


~ City of Paso Robles, Orchard Bungalow Refinancing: $1,705,000


~ City of Gonzales, Certificates of Participation: $650,000


~ City of Tehachapi, Special Tax Bonds:  $2,780,000


~ Paso Robles Redevelopment Agency, (Paso Robles Redevelopment Project):  $3,500,000


~ City of Gonzales, Gonzales Shopping Center Assessment District Bonds:  $410,800


~ County of Monterey, Blackie Road Assessment District, Limited Obligation Improvement
Bonds:  $4,195,000 


~ City of Santa Cruz, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Village Highlands Assessment
District:  $1,466,400 


~ City of Capitola, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Brookvale Terrace Assessment
District:  $2,940,000 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 5 - 


~ County of Sutter, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Highland Estates Improvement
Project:  $375,380 


~ Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, Refunding Certificates of Participation:
$39,000,000 


~ City of Marina, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Marina Landing Assessment
District:  $2,275,753 


~ County of Santa Cruz, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Sand Dollar Beach
Assessment District:  $186,510 


~ City of Atascadero, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Street Improvement Project:
$903,356.13 


~ City of Merced, Limited Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds, North Merced Sewer
Improvement Refunding Reassessment District:  $5,450,000 


~ City of San Rafael, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Peacock Gap Reassessment
District:  $2,405,000 


~ Olivenhain Municipal Water District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds: $7,760,000


~ City of Atascadero, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Camino Real Improvement
Project: $2,100,000 


~ City of Oakdale, G & J Streets Refunding Assessment District, Limited Obligation
Improvement Bonds: $4,300,000 


~ Scotts Valley Water District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds: $2,640,000


~ City of Merced Public Financing Authority, Local Agency Revenue Bonds, $17,220,000
Series A-1 (Tax Allocation Bonds), $1,210,000 Series A-2 (Water Revenue Bonds), 
$4,520,000 Series A-3 (Sewer Revenue Bonds):$22,950,000 


~ Community Development Agency of the City of King, (King City Redevelopment Project)
Tax Allocation Refunding Revenue Bonds:  $5,500,000 


~ Adelanto School District (San Bernardino County, California), General Obligation Bonds,
Series B:  $5,997,952.25 


~ Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, Limited Obligation Refunding
Improvement Bonds:  $1,341,663.80 


~ City of Stockton Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Mariner’s Pointe:  $6,500,000







 


 


The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
 Appendix - 6 - 


~ City of Livingston, Refunding Certificates of Participation:  $460,000 


~ City of Santa Cruz, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, Harvey West Assessment 
District (Costco Regional Center):  $1,458,712.26 


~ City of Shasta Lake (Energy Transmission Project) Certificates of Participation:  $17,960,000 


~ City of Stockton - Special Tax Bonds:  $1,960,000 


~ City of Woodland, Limited Obligation Improvements Refunding Bonds, East Main Street 
Assessment District:  $15,030,000 


~ City of Bakersfield,  Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds: $3,685,000 


~ Padre Dam Municipal Water District, Certificates of Participation:  $11,200,000 


~ City of Yuba City, Certificates of Participation (Police Building Project):  $3,040,000 


~ Mammoth Community Water District (Mono County, California), Refunding Certificates of 
Participation:  $4,725,000 


~ Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe, Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
(Guadalupe Redevelopment Project):  $1,510,000 


~ City of Palm Desert Financing Authority, Revenue Bonds:  $30,915,000 


~ June Lake Public Utility District, Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds:  $740,000 


~ City of Arcata, Refunding Certificates of Participation:  $2,825,000 


~ Mammoth Community Water District (Mono County, California), Limited Obligation 
Refunding Improvement Bonds, Reassessment District:  $5,440,000 


~ Community Development Agency of the City of King Tax Allocation subordinate Revenue 
Bonds (King City Redevelopment Project), Monterey County, California  $4,730,000 


~ Barstow Heights Community Services District (County of San Bernardino), Limited 
Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds  (Bank Qualified)  $1,160,000 


~ Calaveras County Water District, Refunding Improvement District (Saddle Creek), Limited 
Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds: $7,135,000 


~ City of Gonzales, Johnson Canyon-Fanoe Road Improvement Project, Limited Obligation 
Improvement Bonds:  $643,606 


~ Hartnell Community College (City of King), Certificates of Participation (Hartnell CCD 







The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
Appendix - 7 - 


Education and Training Center): $2,515,000 


~ Shaffer Union School District Improvement Project, Certificates of Participation:  $905,000


~ Crescent City, Not to Exceed $9,000,000 (Line of Credit) Bond Anticipation Notes (Water
System Improvement Project) 


~ San Lorenzo Valley Water District, Limited Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds
(Bank Qualified):  $1,199,000 


~ Calaveras County Water District, Limited Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds Lake
Tulloch Reassessment District: $725,000 


~ Humboldt Waste Management Authority, Bond Anticipation Notes: $5,000,000


~ County of Calaveras, Limited Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds Refunding
Improvement District Valley Hills Estates: $1,025,000 


~ Byron Bethany Irrigation District (Administrative Building Project), Lease Revenue Bonds:
$5,750,000 


~ City of Riverbank- Riverbank Public Financing Authority, Local Agency Refunding Revenue
Bonds: $1,700,000 


~ Auburn Valley Public Financing Authority (Placer County), Wastewater Treatment Plant
Expansion Project, Revenue Bonds: $3,335,000 


~ Sweetwater Union High School District, Master Lease: $3,500,000


~ Long Beach Community College District (Los Angeles County), Auction Rate Certificates
of Participation: $34,300,000 


~ Humboldt Waste Management Authority, Revenue Bonds: $7,500,000


~ Middletown Unified School District, General Obligation Bonds: $6,496,430.70


~ West Hills Community College District, Capital Improvement Projects, Auction Rate
Certificates of Participation: $27,950,000 


~ Kern Community College District, Capital Improvement Projects, Auction Rate Certificates
of Participation: $39,950,000 


~ Calaveras County Water District, Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds: $19,625,000


~ Madera Irrigation Financing Authority, $35,805,000 Daily Rate Water Revenue Bonds


~ Madera Irrigation Financing Authority, $12,115,000 Daily Rate Taxable Water Revenue
Bonds 







 


 


The Weist Law Firm | Statement of Qualifications 
 Appendix - 8 - 


~ Victor Valley Union High School District, Refunding Certificates of Participation, Victor 
Valley Junior high School Project: $10,705,000 


~ Calaveras County, Special Tax Refunding Bonds (Saddle Creek): $7,145,000 


~ June Lake Fire Protection District, Lease-Purchase Certificates: $520,000 


~ Kanawha-Glide Public Financing Authority, Kanawha Loan Contract Revenue Refunding 
Bonds: $875,000 


~ Palo Verde Community College District (San Bernardino and Riverside Counties) Auction 
Rate Certificates of Participation: $18,600,000 


~ Isleton Public Financing Authority, Series 2012 Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds 
(Federally Taxable): $1,950,000 


~ Calaveras County Water District, DaLee / Cassidy Water System Assessment District, 
Series 2010 Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds: $990,000.00 


~ City of Austin, Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Senior Master Series 2011, Whisper 
Valley Public Improvement District: $15,500,000 


~ City of Austin, Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Subordinate Series 2011, Whisper Valley 
Public Improvement District: $18,485,168 


~ City of Pismo Beach, Series 2012 Wastewater Refunding Revenue Bonds: $5,710,000 


~ Independent Cities Finance Authority (Planada Community Services District), Wastewater 
Revenue Notes, Issue of 2012: $3,175,000 


~ San Lorenzo Valley Water District, 2012 Water Revenue Refunding Bond: $5,508,471.59 


~ City of Susanville (Lassen County), Series 2012 Lease Financing: $1,581,555.44 


~ Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, Series 2012 Water Revenue Refunding 
Bonds (Bank Qualified): $2,716,072.40 


~ Quincy Community Services District, Series 2012 Certificates of Participation (Wastewater 
System Improvement Project) (Bank Qualified): $3,040,000 


~ Del Puerto Water District, Series 2012 Certificates of Participation (Supplemental Water 
Purchase Program) (Bank Qualified): $1,655,000 


~ Sacramento Transportation Authority, Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (Limited Tax 
Bonds): $53,355,000 









		Item V-C - Refinancing of District Bonds

		Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 



		Item V-C.1 Att A. Weist Law Letter

		Item V-C.2 Att B. Weist Law SOQ






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 7, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED CELL TOWER AT 
HIGHLAND TREATMENT FACILITY  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on discussions with AT&T 
representatives re leasing land at the Highland Treatment Facility for use as a 
cell tower.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
There is no new information on this item as of the date of this report.  I sent an email to the 
project manager who told me the lease was still being reviewed by AT&T legal staff and she 
would let me know when she has new information.   





		Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: March 7, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in January were 18,372 units 


(42.2 AF, Guerneville cycle) and production was 56.6 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales and production this January were higher (38.2 AF and 52.9 
AF, respectively).  The annual average difference between sales and 
production was similar to the prior month, 26.1%, a reduction of 0.1%.  
Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving averages since September 2006, data 
are available back to May 2001.       


 
3. Leaks:  In January we had 22 total leaks and spent 77 man-hours on them.   


Those are more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and 
more of both compared to January one year ago (10 leaks, 36 man-hours).  
Figure 2 is continued showing service and main leaks separately with a total 
breaks line as well.  The annual average is back at the 200 per year mark 
and the 12 month average of service leaks is now very similar to the main 
leaks numbers.  The moving average has moved up this winter but is still 
much below the average from one year ago.          


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall: February was a dry month.  The monthly trend is now 


well off the last wet year (2011) and the long-term average, but well ahead 
of the last drought year (2009) – this year will beat 2009 even if we don’t get 
another drop of rain.  The unseasonably dry weather has helped getting the 
CIP done but we’re ready for some rain now.               


 
5. 2013 CIP:   This project is essentially completed and is on the agenda for 


the Notice of Completion.          
 


6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   Two toilet rebates were approved 
in February.  The Direct Install Program numbers are the same as last 
month: the most current accounting is 17 customers have had 27 direct 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
March 7, 2013 


install toilet installations completed, 13 customers with 17 toilets have been 
approved for installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait list.                     


 
7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were three in-house projects 


reported for February.  Staff replaced a service and 100 feet of mainly 1” 
poly on Main Street in Monte Rio (48.5 hours); installed a 4” mail line valve 
on Guernewood Lane in Guernewood Park (20 hours); and replaced a service 
and meter on Old River Road in Guerneville (28 hours).        


 
8.  Gantt Chart:   March in the Gantt Chart has presentation of the draft 


Budget, budget (we’re discussing that in item B on the agenda) and design of 
the 2014 CIP which is also in progress and on schedule.       


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
March 7, 2013 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
GV 2011
2013


-


 
 
 
 


 







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: March 7, 2013 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 CIP 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 13-07 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Fiscal Year (FY) 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP as 
substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
As of this date we do not have the final numbers in on this project.  However, it is in the 
District’s interest to file this notice when the project is completed as it is now.  When I 
get the final numbers from Coastland Engineering (which depends on they getting final 
numbers from Piazza and agreeing), I will send a final report on this.  Below is the 
report so far: 
 
The FY 2013 CIP, which is replacement of approximately 1940 ft of main line on Starrett Hill 
Road in Monte Rio with 25 services; of approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in 
Guernewood Park with 22 services; of approximately 1,270 ft of main line on Middle Terrace 
in Monte Rio with 13 services; and  elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by 
installing 2,505 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia 
Rd and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido with 31 services is substantially complete.  The Project 
Engineers, Coastland Engineering (Coastland), have communicated that Piazza 
Construction satisfactorily completed all elements of the project. As such it is 
appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 13-07 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, and to sign and record a 
Notice of Completion.   
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District entered into a contract with Piazza Construction  
(Piazza) for construction of the FY 2013 CIP on June 15, 2012 for a contract price of 
$1,353,885.00 with a projected completion date in late October 2012.  There were 
some delays in the project – a late start and some slowness in the early months, but 
the contractor has made a good effort to get the project completed.     During 
construction there were ? approved change orders in the amount of $??????.  The 
projected final total construction cost is $?????.  The Sonoma County Community 
Redevelopment Agency (CRDA) and Russian River Redevelopment Oversight 
Committee (RRROC) supported this project with $974,250 which was 75% of the 
estimated cost for the project.  The actual bid was substantially higher than the 
engineer’s estimate so the grant support was approximately 57% of the total final 
cost which also includes total design and construction management and inspection 
services costs for the project of approximately $223,000.   







2013 CIP Notice of Completion  2  
March 7, 2013 
 
 
Despite the delay issues, the work done by Piazza has been good and District customers 
in the affected areas are seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire 
protection, more consistent water flow, and paved roads where trenching was done.  
The completed project will also reduce system water losses as these areas were 
constant sources of distribution system breaks, and the affected customers will have 
fewer service interruptions due to repair of the leaks.    The neighborhoods served by 
this project have received real, long lasting improvements.  CRDA and RRROC should be 
very satisfied with the completed result meeting the goals of redevelopment.   







 
Resolution No. 13-07 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 


AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into a construction 
contract with Piazza Construction (“Contractor”) on June 15, 2012 for the construction of the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) (“Project”), which is replacement 
of approximately 1940 ft of main line on Starrett Hill Road in Monte Rio with 25 services; of 
approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in Guernewood Park with 22 services; of 
approximately 1,270 ft of main line on Middle Terrace in Monte Rio with 13 services; and  
elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by installing 2,505 lf of new main and 
appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido with 
31 services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been overseen by Coastland Engineering (Coastland), who 
provided engineering services for the District on this project; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland informed the District on February 28, 2013, that the Project has 
been substantially completed; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland has recommended that the District sign and record a Notice of 
Completion for the project.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. The General Manager is hereby authorized to accept the improvements 
constructed as part of the Project.  


2. The General Manager is authorized to sign and record a Notice of Completion 
upon receipt of all necessary completion documentation.   


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on March 7, 2013, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-E.2 - 2013 CIP NOC

		Item V-E.1 Res 13-07 2013 CIP Notice of Completion



